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BOARD'S REPORT 
 

TO THE MEMBERS, 

 
Your Directors are pleased to present the 50thAnnual Report of Pearl Polymers Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2021. 

 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY 

 

The Company's financial performance for the financial year ended March 31, 2021in comparison to previous financial year is 
summarized below: 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20 

Total Revenue 11,528.75 14,204.58 

Total expenses 12,586.37 15,451.36 

Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (1,057.62) (1,246.78) 

Less: Tax Expenses - (131.90) 

Profit/Loss after tax (1,057.62) (1,114.88) 

 

RESERVES 

 
The Reserves and Surplus (excluding Revaluation Reserve) of the Company as on March 31, 2021 stood at Rs.618.34 Lakhs. No 

amount is proposed to be transferred to reserves during the year. 

 
DIVIDEND 

 
In view of the losses, the Board of Directors has not recommended any dividend on equity shares for the year under review. 

 
SHARE CAPITAL 

 
The Company’s Capital Structure remains unchanged during the financial year 2020-21. 

 
STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS/CHANGES IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY 

 

During the year under consideration on Standalone basis your Company has achieved total Revenue of Rs.11,528.75 Lakhs as 

against Rs. 14,204.58Lakhs in the relevant previous financial year.The Company has suffered operating loss of Rs. 1,057.62 

Lakhs as compared to Rs. 1,246.78 Lakhs in the previous year and recorded net loss of Rs. 1,057.62 Lakhs as compared to loss of 

Rs. 1,114.88Lakhs in the previous year due to adverse market conditions at National and International Level, outbreak of COVID 

19 and consequential lockdowns during the year under review and stiff competition from un-organized sector adversely 

affected the turnover. 

 
During the year, there was no change in the nature of business of the Company. 

 
MATERIAL CHANGES EFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 

 
During the year under review, the Company entered into a Business Transfer Agreement (“BTA”) dated September 21, 2020 
with Manjushree Technopack Limited (“MTL”) for sale and transfer of the Company’s business undertaking(s) engaged in 
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manufacturing, marketing, and sale of rigid plastic packaging solutions for sale, gift or supply to other business entities for 
packaging of products (“B2B Business”) on a going concern basis, by way of a slump sale, for a lump sum consideration without 
values being assigned to any individual assets and liabilities, to MTL. Pursuant to the satisfactory completion of all the 
conditions precedent and closing actions (as agreed between the parties under the BTA), the said transaction is consummated 
on April 12, 2021 and the Company’s B2B Business undertakings stood transferred w.e.f that date. 

 
IMPACT OF COVID-19, PREPAREDNESS AND RESPONSE BY THE COMPANY 

 

FY 2020-21 was an unprecedented year with Covid-19 pandemic impacting the globe and global supply 
chains, amidst biggest global health crisis ever faced by the world. 

 
We are grateful to the frontline healthcare workers and other support teams who are selflessly and fearlessly serving humanity 
during these challenging times. The silver lining is the success of large-scale vaccination in a few countries in controlling the 
pandemic that is giving hope to humanity at large. 

 

India was relatively successful in managing the first wave of the pandemic outbreak but unfortunately, the second wave of 
Covid-19 spreaded the virus much more rapidly across India, including the rural areas which were relatively less impacted in the 
first wave. 

 
As per the World Bank, the global economic output is recovering from the downturn triggered by Covid-19 but it will remain 
below pre-pandemic trends for a prolonged period. A well-coordinated response to the pandemic will shape the future of the 
global economy for years to come. Covid-19 lockdown disrupted economic activity and led to unprecedented market volatility. 
These events lowered global economic growth, India’s GDP growth and collapsed oil prices. 

 
With the wholehearted support from all employees, suppliers and channel partners at Pearl, we managed to serve our 
customers and ensured sustainability in our business. Measures on continuous engagement with our employees facilitated us in 
safeguarding our workforce and their family members from the Covid-19 impact. We, at the Board level, are very appreciative 
of the support offered by the team. Without their commitment and support, we would not have been able to adopt and 
successfully adapt to the newer ways of working during the year. We are cautious and yet hopeful, that our efforts in this 
direction will help us in managing the safety of all our relevant stakeholders and serve our customers with limited disruption. 

 
We are cautious and hopeful that with an all-out effort, we will be able to overcome the challenging situation the country is 
facing. We are proud of the resilience; Pearl has shown in this challenging time to ensure personal safety and at the same time, 
running the operations with limited interruptions, which led to a sustained performance during the year. 

 
At Pearl Polymers Limited, we responded to these headwinds by being well-prepared through our strong core competencies 
and resilient business model. During the year, the Company focused on achieving its business goals hand-in-hand with cutting 
costs. Necessary efforts were made towards business continuity and resilience. 

 
Efforts were made to support the work, workforce and workplace experiences by an ecosystem of virtual resources, digital 
technology and behaviour that has defined work as a thing we do, not a place we go to, resulting in quality performance and 
output. The office based employees sustained the practice of remote working/working from home with the help of adequate 
digital and other assistance and those working from plants and other locations ensured undertaking utmost care and 
precaution at all times. 

 
The Company being in the packaging industry has supplied the packaging of essential items such as Hand Sanitizers; 
pharmaceutical etc. to the pharmaceutical companies and other FMCG companies and has done all possible efforts to bring in 
line the operations. 

 
Our state-of-the art manufacturing units and distribution channels enabled us to timely deliver products to our customers 
despite the nationwide lockdown. 

 

Business sentiments across the country are showing positive signs of recovery. The impact assessment of COVID-19 is a 
continuing process given the uncertainty with its durations. We at Pearl Polymers Limited will continue to monitor any material 
changes as the situation evolves and strive to do best in the interest of all the stakeholders. 
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MATERIAL ORDERS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS OF THE COMPANY 

 
There is no order passed by any regulatory authority or court or tribunal against the Company, impacting the going concern 
status and future operations of the Company. 

 
DEPOSITS 

 
Your Company has not accepted any deposits during the year under review, falling within the ambit of Section 73 ofthe 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,2014. 

 
INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND 

 

Pursuant to Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, 
Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, the amount of fixed deposit remaining unpaid /unclaimed for a period of seven years 
has been transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Central Government of India. 
Further, the Company has uploaded the necessary information in respect of the unclaimed amount on the website of IEPF viz. 
www.iepf.gov.in and on the Company’s website at www.pearlpet.net 

 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

 
The provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility as prescribed under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable 
to the Company. 

 
HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE OR JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES 

 
The Company has no Holding, Subsidiary, Associate or Joint Venture Company. 

 
DIRECTORSAND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

 
Appointments/Re-appointments/Resignations 

 
a) Director Liable to Retire by Rotation 

 
Mr. Varun Seth (DIN:00017552),the Whole Time Director of the Company retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting, and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. The Board recommends his re-appointment. 

 
b) Mr. Udit Seth 

 
The Board of Directors (based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee) has appointed Mr. Udit 
Seth (DIN: 00005403) as an Additional Director of the Company under Section 161(1) of the Act and pursuant to the powers 
conferred by the Articles of Association, with effect from 10th August, 2021. In terms of Section 161(1) of the Act, Mr. Udit Seth 
holds office only upto the date of the ensuing AGM and is eligible for appointment as a Director. The Company has received a 
Notice under Section 160(1) of the Act from Mr. Udit Seth signifying his intention to propose his appointment as a Director. The 
Board has also appointed Mr. Udit Seth as the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company for a period of three (3) years 
from 16th August, 2021 upto 15th August, 2024, upon the terms & conditions and remuneration as stated in the AGM Notice, 
subject to approval of the Members. Accordingly, the Board recommends the proposal of his appointment as Director w.e.f the 
date of this AGM and Chairman & Managing Director w.e.f. 16th August,2021 for approval of the members at the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting. A brief profile of Mr. Udit Seth has been provided in the AGM Notice 

 
c) Mr. Amit Seth 

 

The Board of Directors (based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee) has appointed Mr. Amit 
Seth (DIN: 00017395) as an Additional Director of the Company under Section 161(1) of the Act and pursuant to the powers 
conferred by the Articles of Association, with effect from 10th August, 2021. In terms of Section 161(1) of the Act, Mr. Amit 
Seth holds office only upto the date of the ensuing AGM and is eligible for appointment as a Director. The Company has 
received a Notice under Section 160(1) of the Act from Mr. Amit Seth signifying his intention to propose his appointment as a 

http://www.iepf.gov.in/
http://www.pearlpet.net/
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Director. The Board has also appointed Mr. Amit Seth as the Whole Time Director of the Company for a period of three (3) 
years from 16th August, 2021 upto 15th August, 2024, upon the terms & conditions and remuneration as stated in the AGM 
Notice, subject to approval of the Members. Accordingly, the Board recommends the proposal of his appointment as Director 
w.e.f the date of this AGM and Whole Time Director w.e.f. 16th August,2021 for approval of the members at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting. A brief profile of Mr. Amit Seth has been provided in the AGM Notice. 

 

 
d) Mr. Varun Seth 

 

Mr. Varun Seth was re-appointed as Whole Time Director of the Company w.e.f. July 01, 2018 for a period of three years by the 
shareholders of the Company in 47th AGM. Accordingly his term of appointment was valid till June 30, 2021. In view of this and 
on the basis of the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and subject to the approval members of 
the Company in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, the Board has re-appointed Mr. Varun Seth as Whole Time Director for a 
further period of three (3) years w.e.f. July 01, 2021. Accordingly, the Board recommends the proposal of his re-appointment 
for approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and same has been mentioned in the Notice convening 
the AGM. A brief profile of Mr. Varun Seth has also been provided therein. 

 
e) Mr. Anant Kanoi 

 

The Board of Directors (based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee) has appointed Mr. Anant 
Kanoi(DIN: 00150667) as an Additional Director, Non-Executive and Independent of the Company under Section 161(1) of the 
Act and pursuant to the powers conferred by the Articles of Association, with effect from 31st March, 2021. In terms of Section 
161(1) of the Act, Mr. Anant Kanoi holds office only upto the date of the ensuing AGM and is eligible for appointment as 
Director and Independent Director of the Company. The Company has received a Notice under Section 160(1) of the Act 
signifying his intention to propose Mr. Anant Kanoi’s appointment as a Director. The said appointment of Mr. Anant Kanoi is 
subject to approval of the Members. The Company has also received consent and all other necessary declarations and 
disclosures from Mr. Anant Kanoi. Accordingly, the Board recommends the proposal of appointment of Mr. Anant Kanoias a 
Director effective from the date of this AGM and Independent Director, not liable to retire by rotation for a period of five 
consecutive years w.e.f. 31st March, 2021 for approval of the members in the ensuing AGM. A brief profile of Mr. Anant Kanoi 
has also been provided therein. 

 

f) Mr. Chand Seth 

 
After a long association of more than 50 years with the Company, Mr. Chand Seth has retired as Chairman & Managing Director 
of the Company w.e.f end of working hours of 14th August, 2021. However, at the request for his guidance and assistance in 
the growth and expansion of the Company, Mr. Chand Seth accepted to be designated as Chairman Emeritus in the capacity of 
advisor and continue his invaluable association with the Company. Accordingly, based on the recommendation of the 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee and approval of the Audit Committee, the Board has appointed Mr. Chand Seth as 
Chairman Emeritus in the capacity of Advisor w.e.f 16th August, 2021. 

 
g) Changes in Key Managerial Personnel 

 
During the year, Mr. Dinesh Kumar Tak has resigned from the office of Chief Financial Officer of the Company w.e.f close of 
working hours of 31st July, 2020 and the Board has appointed Mr. Sanjeev Rikhi as Chief Financial Officer of the Company w.e.f 
01st August, 2020. 

 
h) Resignation of Independent Director 

 
During the year, Mr. Ravi Kumar Mehra has resigned from the office of Independent Director w.e.f 01st January, 2021 due to his 
health reasons. He has also confirmed that there is no other material reason for his resignation as Independent Director from 
the Company other than those provided. 

 

i) Declaration by Independent Director 
The Company has received declarations from the Independent Directors confirming that they meet the criteria of independence 
as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
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Further, in terms of Section 150 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification 
of Directors) Rules, 2014, Independent Directors of the Company have confirmed that they have registered themselves with the 
databank maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs. 

 
In the opinion of the Board, Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in the Act, Rules made thereunder and Listing 
Regulations and possess relevant expertise & experience and are independent of the management. However, the online 
proficiency self-assessment test will be given by the Independent Directors as per the provisions of the Companies Act. 

 
BOARD EVALUATION 

 

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, board committees and individual Directors 
as per the formal mechanism for such evaluation adopted by the Board pursuant to Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 
(10) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 
The exercise of performance evaluation was carried out through a structured evaluation process covering various aspects of 
evaluation. A member of the Board did not participate in the discussion of his/her evaluation. Performance evaluation of 
Independent Directors was carried out by the entire board, excluding the Independent Director being evaluated. 

 
A meeting of the Independent Directors was also held, to review the performance of the Non-Independent Directors, the Board 
as a whole and the Chairperson on the parameters of effectiveness and to assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of the 
flow of information between the Management and the Board. 

 
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY 

 

Your Company has adopted a Nomination and Remuneration Policy as required by Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
which provides for the appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel &senior management, board diversity 
and their remuneration including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director etc. The 
remuneration paid is as per the Policy. The details of such policy can be viewed on the Company's website www.pearlpet.net. 

 

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
The Board of Directors of the Company, met Five (5) times during the financial year 2020-21. 

 

31st July, 2020  
 
 

Board Meetings 

11th November, 2020 

31st August, 2020 12th February, 2021 

21st September, 2020  

 
The Independent Directors also held separate meeting to review the performance of Non-independent Directors and overall 
performance of the board. 

 
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 

 
Details of Loans, Guarantees or Investments, if any, covered under the provisions of Section 186 of theCompanies Act, 2013 are 
given in the notes to the Financial Statements. 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL 
 

The Company has put in place a policy and mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks to key business 
objectives. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on 
continuing basis. There are no risks which in the opinion of the Board threaten the existence of the Company. Your Company 
has an Internal Financial Control System which was operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of 

http://www.pearlpet.net/
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the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 
2013. 

 

INSIDER TRADING CODE 

 
The details regarding insider trading code are given in the Corporate Governance section of the Annual Report. Your Company 
has also policy for determination of legitimate purposes in line with the PIT (Amendment) Regulations, 2018 as a part of Code 
of practices and procedures of fair disclosures of unpublished price sensitive information. 

 
VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

 

Your Company is committed to highest standards of ethical, moral and legal business conduct. The Company has a policy on 
whistle blower and vigil mechanism for providing a framework to promote responsible and secure whistle blowing. It protects 
Directors and employees wishing to raise a concern about serious irregularities within the Company. The Policy is available on 
the Company’s website at www.pearlpet.net. 

 

During FY 2020-21, no complaint was received. Further, no individual was denied access to the Audit Committee for reporting 
concerns, if any. 

 
DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMAN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL 
ACT), 2013 

 
Your Company has a policy on prevention of Sexual Harassment in line with the requirement of Sexual Harassment of Women 
atWorkplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 and has constituted the Internal Complaints Committee. All 
employees (Permanent, Contractual, Temporary, Trainees) are covered under this policy. The Company has not received any 
complaint of sexual harassment during the financial year 2020-21. 

 
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION 

 
The Disclosure required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with the Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is annexed as Annexure ‘I’ and forms an integral part of this Report. A 
statement comprising the names of top 10 employees and other details in terms of remuneration drawn in terms of Rule 5(2)& 
(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 forms an integral part of this 
annual report but the said statement is not being sent alongwith this annual report to the members of the Company in line with 
the provisions of Section 136 of the Act. However, the said information is available for inspection by the Members at the 
Registered Office of the Company during business hours on working days of the Company up to the date of ensuing AGM. 
Members who are interested in obtaining these particulars may write to the Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the 
Company on any working day of the Company up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
Particulars in respect of Conservation of Energy, Technology absorption and Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo as required 
under section 134 (3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the rules there under, are provided in Annexure-‘II’ to this 
report. 

 
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

 
The Board of Directors of the Company, to the best of their knowledge and belief confirm that: 

 

I. In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper 
explanation relating to material departures, if any; 

 

II.  The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as atMarch 31, 2021 and of 
the profit and loss of the Company for that period; 

http://www.pearlpet.net/
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III. The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities; 

 

IV. The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 
 

V. The Directors have laid down internal financial controls which were followed by the Company and such internal financial 
controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and 

 
VI. The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and such systems 

were adequate and operating effectively. 

 
AUDITORS 

 
a) Statutory Auditors 

 
Statutory Auditors and Auditor’s Report 

 
The shareholders of the Company at 46thAGM held on September 29, 2017 had appointed M/s. Sehgal Mehta & Co. Chartered 
Accountants, (ICAI Registration No-003330N), as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of 5 years, subject to 
ratification by members at every AGM, if required under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. However, the Companies 
Amendment Act, 2017 has removed the requirement of ratification of statutory auditors and accordingly they hold their office 
till the conclusion of Annual General Meeting to be held in 2022. 

 

The Notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditor’s Report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further 
comments. The Auditor’s Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer. There are no 
frauds reported in the reports of the Auditors as mentioned under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act. 

 
b) Secretarial Auditor 

 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules,2014, the Board of Directors appointed Ms. Rashmi Sahni (Certificate of Practice No. 10493) 
Practicing Company Secretary, to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for FY 2020-21. Copy of Secretarial Audit 
Report is annexed as Annexure-‘III’ to this report 

 

The Secretarial Audit Report of your Company does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark. 

 
c) Internal Auditor 

 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors appointed Nikhil Goel & 
Associates (Firm Registration No. 020934C) Chartered Accountantsas an Internal Auditor of the Company to conduct an internal 
audit of the functions and activities of the Company for financial year 2020-21. 

 
d) Cost Auditor 

 
The provisions regarding maintenance of Cost Records and conducting the Cost Audit as prescribed under section 148 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE INSTITUTE OF COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA (“ICSI”) SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

 
The relevant Secretarial Standards issued by the ICSI related to the Board Meetings and General Meetings have been complied 
with by the Company. 
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STATUTORY COMPLIANCES 
 

The Board periodically reviews the mechanism put in place by the management to ensure the compliances with Laws and 
Regulations as may be applicable to the Company as well as the steps taken by the Company to rectify the instances of non- 
compliances, if any. 

 
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 
During the year, there were no transactions with related parties which were not at arm’s length and not in the ordinary course 
of business as per the provisions of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 or materially significant or which were in conflict 
with the interests of the Company and that require an approval of the Company’s shareholders in terms of the Companies Act 
or SEBI Listing Regulations. Accordingly, the disclosure of the transactions in Form AOC-2 is not applicable to your Company. 

 
All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee and the Board for review and approval. Prior omnibus 
approval of the Audit Committee was obtained for the transactions which are of a foreseen and repetitive nature. The 
transactions entered into pursuant to the omnibus approval so granted are placed before the Audit Committee and the Board 
of Directors for their review on a quarterly basis. The detailed policy on Related Party Transactions is available on the website of 
the Company at www.pearlpet.net. The details regarding Related Party Transactions are contained in the Notes to Financial 
Statements. 

 
ANNUAL RETURN 

 
Pursuant to Sec 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 
2014, the copy of Annual Return can be accessed at Company’s website at www.pearlpet.net. 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

 
A Separate report on Corporate Governance along with certificate from Ms. Rashmi Sahni, Practicing Company Secretary 
confirming compliance with the requirement of Corporate Governance as stipulated under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 as 
amended from time to time, forms an integral part of the Annual Report and is attached as Annexure-’IV’. 

 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

 
Statements in this report, particularly those which relate to Management Discussion & Analysis, describing the Company's 
objectives, projections, estimates and expectations may constitute 'forward looking statements’ within the meaning of 
applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may differ materially from those either expressed or implied. 
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Chand Seth 
Place: New Delhi Chairman & Managing Director 
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ANNEXURE-‘I’ 
STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE OF REMUNERATION UNDER SECTION 197 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5 OF 

THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 
(1) Ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the financial year 2020-21: 

 

Median remuneration of all the employees of the Company for the Financial year 
2020-21 

Rs. 2,96,556/- 

The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 
2021 

291 

 

Name of the Director Designation Ratio of remuneration of 
Directors to Median 
remuneration of all 

Employees 

Mr. Chand Seth Chairman & Managing Director 13.08 

Mr. Varun Seth Whole Time Director 12.14 

Mr. Ramesh Mehra Whole Time Director 4.54 

Mr. Ravi Kumar Mehra Non Executive and Independent Director 
 

N.A. 

Ms. Meera Johri Non Executive and Independent Director 
 

N.A. 

Mr. Ashish Bhuva Non Executive and Independent Director 
 

N.A. 

Mr. Anant Kanoi Additional Director (Non Executive and Independent 
) 

N.A. 

 
                     Percentage increase in remuneration of each Director on the Board, CFO and CS during the Financial Year 2020-21 

Name of the Directors Designation 

% increase 

Mr. Chand Seth Chairman & Managing Director NA 

Mr. Varun Seth Whole Time Director NA 

Mr. Ramesh Mehra Whole Time Director NA 

Mr. Ravi Kumar Mehra Independent &Non Executive Director NA 

Mr. Ashish Harish Bhuva 
Independent &Non Executive Director NA 

Ms. Meera Johri 
Independent &Non Executive Director NA 

Mr. Anant Kanoi Additional Director (Non Executive and 
Independent ) 

NA 

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Tak Chief Financial Officer NA 

Mr. Sanjeev Rikhi Chief Financial Officer 8% 

Mr. Vineet Gupta 
Company Secretary 8% 

 
 

i. During the year, there was no increase in the remuneration of any Director instead they have drawn the remuneration at lesser 

rate in comparison with FY 2020-21. 

ii. During the year, no Independent & Non Executive Director is paid any remuneration except sitting fee as mentioned in the 

Corporate Governance Section of the Annual Report. 

iii. During the year, there was no increase in the salary of Mr. Dinesh Kumar Tak. 

iv. Mr. Dinesh Tak has resigned from the Company w.e.f close of working hours of 31st July, 2020. 
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v. As Mr. Sanjeev Rikhi is appointed as CFO w.e.f 01st August, 2020, the remuneration paid to him as CFO is not comparable with 

remuneration paid to him in the capacity of normal employee of the Company before his appointment as CFO. However, there was 

8% increase in the remuneration of Mr. Sanjeev Rikhi during the year effective from January, 2021. 

vi. Median Remuneration is calculated after taking into consideration the Cost to the Company. 

vii. The Employees who have left during the year are not taken into consideration for calculating the median remuneration of all the 

employees. 

viii. The Employees who have joined the Company during the year at any point of time and continued to be employed till 31st March 

are taken into consideration for calculating the median remuneration of all the employees. 

ix. During the year, there was 8% increase in the remuneration of Mr. Vineet Gupta effective from January, 2021. 

                      Percentage increase in the Median Remuneration of Employees in the Financial Year 2020- 21: 

2020-21 2019-20 Increase % 

296556 250099 18.57 

 
 

i. Percentage increase in median remuneration of all the employees might be on account of change in mode of calculation and due 

to other factors like increase in remuneration of the employees. 

ii. During the year, there was average 5%-6% increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel as 

part of performance management system. % increase made in the remuneration of CFO & CS was based on their performance 

and duties and responsibilities shouldered by them as KMP of the Company. 

 
Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company. 

 
We affirm that remuneration paid by the Company is as per the Remuneration policy of the Company. 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 
INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT 

 
India is currently the world’s sixth largest economy and one of the fastest-growing large countries, with an annual gross 
domestic product (GDP) growth rate of mid to high single digit percentage, a momentum that is expected to sustain over the 
next five to ten years. In purchasing power parity terms, India ranks third behind the United States and China. 

 
Domestic consumption, which powers 60% of the GDP today, is expected to grow into a $6 trillion opportunity by 2030. This 
consumption growth will be supported by a 1.4 billion strong population that is younger than that of any other major economy. 
Household savings have historically been high as thrifty and cautious Indian families put away more than a fifth of their incomes 
for a rainy day. This buffer provides support to domestic consumption expenditure even through challenging cycles in economic 
activity. 

 
The vision for the future of consumption in India is anchored in the growth of the upper-middle income and high-income 
segments, which will grow from being one in four households today, to one in two households by 2030. The country, one of the 
last big consumer markets still up for grabs. 

 
Over the next decade, one of the biggest changes in India will be the coming of age of liberalization’s true children – the nearly 
700 million people born through the late 1980s to the 2000s. With a median age of 28 years, India is a nation of young working- 
age persons who drive both income and consumption. It will continue to remain young up to 2030 with a median age of 31 
years. These individuals will have grown up in a more open and confident India and will not carry the cultural or economic 
baggage of their predecessors. This is a generation on the move that aspires to a materially better life, backed by the ability to 
spend and make it a reality. 

 
One of the most challenging and exciting implications for companies in India is the opportunity to shape consumption patterns 
– in terms of categories consumed, brands purchased or ways of accessing products and information. India’s unique 
combination of preferences, aspirations and prudence will require innovation specifically for this market. A massive increase in 
internet penetration will lead to more than a billion internet users in India by 2030. 

 
Those who are more connected have a keener sense of what is “desirable” and are willing to invest in more comfortable living – 
including a greater spend on household durables and services. 

 
While the long-term outlook on consumption led growth in India appears strong, the near-term may be challenging. India’s GDP 
growth had been on the decline even before the pandemic struck earlier last year. From a growth rate of 8.3 per cent in 2016- 
17, the GDP expansion had dipped to 6.8 per cent and 6.5 per cent in the following two years and to 4 per cent in 2019-20. 

 
The outbreak of the Covid-19 pandemic caused significant disruption during 2020-21. India imposed a stringent nationwide 
lockdown in the first quarter of the financial year with a phased opening up thereafter leading to a sharp decline in GDP. The 
economy snapped out of technical recession in the third quarter of the financial year 2020-21, after two consecutive quarters 
of de-growth. In the October-December quarter of fiscal 2020-21, the GDP growth expanded by 0.4 per cent. It is estimated 
that the GDP contracted by about 8% in 2020-21. With a recovery underway, the economy was projected to grow by 12%- 
13.5% in 2021-22 from the lower base. 

 
India’s revival in consumer spending is likely to be driven by households that earn more than a million rupees a year when the 
lockdown is lifted. Consumer sentiments survey data suggest that while all income groups are worse off than they were earlier, 
richer households are doing better than the rest on the sentiments front. These are the least affected households and most 
likely with the best savings. 

 
India is going digital and the pandemic has accelerated this shift. Even before the COVID-19 pandemic, India’s e-commerce 
sector had begun to gain immense traction as people swayed from physical shopping and gravitated towards online shopping. 
The pandemic accelerated this adoption of e-commerce and India, today, is one of the fastest-growing e-commerce markets in 
the world with an estimated 330 million online shoppers over the past year. 
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Consumers are flocking online for almost all their needs - from groceries and essentials to clothing and accessories. Moreover, 
goods that will come in useful during long periods at home are seeing increased sales. Brands have been compelled to develop 
an online presence even if they had none before. This has led to a massive spurt in Direct to Consumer (D2C) brands. 

 
The economy is now enabling people to cater to niche segments of consumers economically and there is also a rise in digital 
entrepreneurs. Brands are also realizing the need to approach consumers directly rather than going to marketplaces to build 
private labels. Moreover, payment infrastructure and integration with multiple payment options and the demand for niche 
products has led to the surge in the number of D2C brands. 

 
Pearl Polymers Limited conducted its operations in two business segments, namely its B2B Business Segment and its B2C 
Business segment during the FY 2020-21. 

 
PearlPET is the houseware brand of Pearl Polymers, the leading manufacturer of rigid packaging and house ware products since 
its inception in 1971. We offer the widest range of jars and bottles for usage in the kitchen, home and offices. 

 
We are the pioneers in the field of PET & PP packaging in India. Through our network of four plants and numerous offices 
through the length and breadth of the country, and a production capacity of over 100 machines currently, we have successfully 
changed the packaging industry in the country. Our stringent quality standards and innovative designs have allowed us to 
garner clients in varied fields such as Pharma, Food, Liquor, Chemicals, Cosmetics and many more. 

 
However, the Company has sold its B2B Business segment engaged in manufacturing, marketing, and sale of rigid plastic 
packaging solutions for sale, gift or supply to other business entities for packaging of products to Manjushree Technopack 
Limited w.e.f 12th April, 2021 and remains with the B2C Business segment. 

 
Now the Company is operating with its B2C Business segment only which is widely known as PearlPET. 

 
PearlPET is proud to be seen as a mark of quality in the minds of all our consumers. We endeavor to give you a wide & unique 
variety of storage options to help keep your food safe and hygienic using state of the art technology and precision engineering. 

 
We are proud to have bought a new thought process to the Indian kitchen by making the first safe, transparent, unbreakable, 
odorless plastic jars & bottles. We are now expanding our range to include trendy steel, glass, biodegradable and other 
products. 

 
We believe that our products should be safe for everyone to use from sneaking a snack in the dark to drinking water on the go. 

 
Our R&D Team have been provided with state-of-the-art CAD systems, along with in-house mould development systems, by 
which a team of skilled and dedicated staff develop new techniques to better serve our customers. 

 
The success of our R&D Department has been realized through several packaging awards, like the World Star, Asia Star, India 
Star and Plast Icons Awards that have been awarded to Pearl Polymers Limited, both nationally and internationally. 

 
Pearl has been the brand of choice for Kitchenware products used by end customers in the market. 

 
Consumers’ demand is increasing for more sustainable kitchenware products and will continue to shape the industry and the 
answer is responsible products that offer differentiated functionality while minimizing waste in the environment. PearlPET 
products have been and will continue to be sustainable by using fully recyclable material. 

 

RECENT DEVELOPMENT 

 
The global kitchenware market size was valued at USD 56.8 billion in 2018 and is expected to expand at a CAGR of 4.5% over 
the forecast period (2019-25). Economic growth in emerging countries and rapid urbanization are the primary factors driving 
the market. Moreover, rising disposable income, changing lifestyles, and an increasing number of households are surging the 
demand for the product over the last few years and are expected to propel the market growth in the forecast period (2019- 
2025). 
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Furthermore, the growing trend of smart kitchens is influencing the market growth as it leads to a change in the purchase 
pattern of the consumer group. An increase in the residential side of the market is also fueling market growth. For instance, as 
per census 2011, in India, the household count has increased from 52.06 million to 78.48 million. In other countries, a growing 
population due to increasing immigrants from different countries has surged the number of household consumption, thus 
propelling the market demand for the product. 

 
The Industry in India is moderately fragmented in nature, owing to the several players competing to improve their market 
share. With the rising demand for Kitchenware products and household items, along with technological advancement across 
the Indian economy, many companies are increasing their market presence by expanding their business footprint across various 
end-user markets. 

 
Consumers want their kitchenware products to be hygienic, safe and at the same time to look attractive. This development has 
led to healthy competition between the local manufacturers to deliver innovative products, and as a result, the entire 
ecosystem is gearing up for the change. 

 
The industry is driven by key factors like rising population, increase in income levels and changing lifestyles. Demand from rural 
sector for products is being fueled by increasing media penetration through the means of internet and television. 

 
With advancement in technology and general awareness, the plastic sector in India is well poised as most of the raw materials 
for making these products are abundantly available in the country. Moreover, the per capita spending has increased 
tremendously, leading to changing rural markets and a growing middle class who demand the best of products. Various 
upgraded technologies are being used in industry. 

 
OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS 

 
India is forecasted to become the 5th largest consumer market in the world by 2025. Currently, the country is experiencing a 12 
% year on year growth in consumer expenditure as against a global increase of 5%. 100 plus million middle-class Indian 
households will show high growth in their consumption pattern owing to increase in their incomes and moving them upwards 
into affluent and elite segments. 

 
The retail industry in India has emerged as one of the most dynamic and fast-paced. With the constant entry of several new 
players across a variety of product categories and retail formats, India's retail market is expected to increase significantly. 
Organized retail in India has been growing exponentially every year. 

 
Houseware is a growing category in the Indian domestic retail market with an annual growth of 25-30%. From the traditional to 
the modern society, across the globe, houseware has always existed as a major product category in the marketplace. India has 
also witnessed a major shift in buyer or consumer base for houseware products and it is no more restricted to women. 

 
Production of standard quality tableware, kitchenware, and general houseware, and products in India is still very limited and 
hence, the market is also fed through imports. There are hundreds of importers and distributors, who either import and sell 
under their own brands or represent international brands in India. 

 
With evolving lifestyle of Indians, India has witnessed a major shift in the houseware industry. Due to the high degree of 
urbanization, the proliferation of nuclear families and technological advancement, there have been far-reaching changes in the 
nature of houseware products. In India, globalization has also brought about significant changes in cooking, serving and dining 
habits. 

 
The complexity of the products also makes it necessary that husband-wife both engage in the purchase of these products - be it 
kitchenware, cookware, tableware, kitchen appliances, storage, cleaning or maintenance products, outdoor houseware, or 
travel goods, one can see the drastic change in the market scenario. Most of the modern day houseware products are now 
made by combining materials like steel, plastics, ceramics, glass and so on. Hence the market classification is now less material- 
driven and more utility or functionality-driven. 

 
Aspirational demand across segments will also drive the consumption and consumer spending upwards. Increasing number of 
nuclear families and their keenness to invest in their own homes is leading to a consistent growth in housing sector, which is 
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bound to push demand for houseware products. It will also push upwards the market for consumer durables. With rising 
affluence, consumers are bound to move beyond functionality in their purchases and will increasingly spend on lifestyle factors 
like design, trends, fashion and aesthetics. All these factors create a potential market for entrepreneurs to tap into and explore 
huge opportunities in India in manufacturing, retail, distribution and imports. Retail will obviously be the biggest of them all. 

 
Traditionally, houseware products were more utility-driven with a high focus on functionality, labour saving and simplifying 
domestic chores. Today, such products are already well accepted by consumers across all market segments. But the Indian 
houseware industry missed the retail boom enjoyed by categories like apparel and food in India over the last 28 years, as the 
majority of its products lacked good design and glamour of branding. Retailers always identify retail space allocation with big 
brands and well-designed products. As the houseware sector emerges in its contemporary avatar with focus on good design, 
high technology, branding and glamorous presentation, retailers are discovering a great opportunity in this segment as both 
unit prices and margins go up. With the increased allocation of retail space as well as the entry of e.com players, houseware 
business is poised for substantial growth. 

 
The advancements in terms of product innovations and technologies in the market are also expected to create strong 
investment opportunities for global players. Regulatory and structural guidelines are expected to be the strongest restraints for 
the industry. High input costs and environmental concerns are the major challenges, whereas fluctuating demand patterns and 
advancements of alternative technologies are expected to be the burning issues. 

 
However, despite having a good growth potential, the industry faces many threats and challenges. Some of the challenges are: 

 
 

Organizational Challenges 

 
That said, in an ordinary market situation, the challenges differ. While the fragmented nature of the industry adds up to a large 
segment of the problems, that’s just one part of the puzzle. One commonality that can be mapped across businesses and 
industries though is the chaos that these challenges lead to. Chaos in terms of failed packaging design, packaging stock-out, 
erroneous artwork, product recalls - it’s a long list. At a broader level, resulting in a loss of business and revenue. And that’s 
where the bigger problem lies. 

 
Organizations are intrinsically wired to think about aspects like the product, its quality, its usability, and its benefits. This often 
takes away the spotlight from packaging. In some cases, we’ve seen businesses lacking awareness on how their packaging is 
impacting their business topline and bottom line. And in most cases, this can be tied back to their inadequate understanding of 
the packaging supply chain. 

 
 

Environmental Consciousness 

 
With environmental awareness rising globally, there is a strong momentum towards sustainable solutions. Stakeholders across 
the value chain are voicing their concerns regarding the use of plastic products and organizations are realigning themselves in 
this direction. 

 
However, there are teething challenges the market is facing in providing these sustainable solutions. The investment required 
for the research of these solutions is high. This has limited the number of available eco-friendly options. Also, these solutions 
come at an added cost which neither the industry nor the consumer is prepared to absorb. This is making manufacturers wary 
of investing in the production that might not fetch the markup price. Importing again is cost-intensive. 

 
 

Stringent regulations 

 
Stringent regulations imposed for plastic products may act as a restraint but to a lower extent. Compliance with regulations is 
necessary as the smallest defect in product may lead to rejection of the product. It will also negatively impact the 
manufacturer’s profit. 

 
Regulatory authorities ensure that the raw material used is biodegradable. The industry needs to make products sustainable 
while also ensuring low costs. The use of biodegradable raw materials costs higher than their non-biodegradable counterparts. 
It adds to the production costs, further increasing the cost pressure and limiting the growth of the plastic products market. 
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Apart from these, some of the players present in the industry follow unethical practices to increase the revenue by selling poor 
quality products which may look similar but are hazardous to the environment. 

 
Most of these challenges can be solved with technology, to form a tightly knit and integrated system. However, with 
technology, an all-embracing approach would be necessary. Every stage of the procurement process will need 
automation. Business leaders can empower their teams with visibility of their supply chain in real-time. This would help them 
absorb demand fluctuations faster. 

 
India, remains one of the most complex countries to manage and build businesses in. The market requires an in-depth 
consumer understanding and is not only price and value sensitive but also unorganized. Nonetheless, Indian houseware 
market's potential and growth aspect are appealing to major international players. 

 
Entrepreneurs have to understand that while the market is sizeable they will have to keep a few factors in mind to conduct 
business successfully. One needs to understand the substantial size of the market for the particular product category in 
different retail channels and the strength and weaknesses of each major player present in the market. As consumers get more 
used to branded and better products and buying through organized retail channels, opportunities for entrepreneurs in 
houseware segment will become larger and larger in the years ahead. 

 
HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

 
The year presented unique challenges and tested our outlook towards employees and stakeholders. We are grateful to the 
Pearl family – the employees and everyone in the extended value chain at, who made this happen. Pearl believes that the 
employees are at the core of its strategies to achieve all present and future organizational goals. The wellbeing emerged as a 
key priority for our people and their families due to the novel corona virus. Through the year, we built a systemic approach on 
wellbeing with customized interventions for various employee segments and continue to encourage work from home wherever 
possible and reinforce safety standards in office and factory locations. The HR department was continuously in touch with 
employees to create awareness, educate, guide and solve problems regarding COVID-19. 

 
Industrial Relations with staff and workmen at Head Office and across all the plants, continued to be cordial. Your Company has 
successfully aligned human capital with business and organizational objectives. The emphasis has been on team work, skill 
development and development of leadership and functional capabilities of the employees. There are number of employees 
who have left the Company or are retrenched by the Company during the year. 

 
As on 31st March, 2021, there were 291 employees including the Executive Directors recorded on the roll of Company. 

 
OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW 
The operations and financial review is covered in the Board’s Report and is to be read as a part of this report itself. 

 
KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS 

Ratios FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20 

Debtors Turnover (in times) 3.92 3.77 

Inventory Turnover (in times) 3.71 4.09 

Interest Coverage Ratio (in times) -1.58 -1.98 

Current Ratio (in times) 0.78 0.91 

Debt Equity Ratio (in times) 1.18 0.76 

Operating Profit Margin (%) 40.81 38.19 

Net Profit Margin (%) -9.17 -7.85 

Return on Net Worth (%) -40.60 -28.49 

Notes: 
 

i. The more than 25% change in Debt Equity Ratio as compared to last Financial Year is because of operational losses 
during the FY 2020-21, the reserves have gone down. 

ii. The more than 25% change in Return on Net worth as compared to last Financial Year is because of competitive prices 
and fall in gross margin. 
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SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE 

During the Year under review, your Company was operating only in one segment. 

 
RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Company is also exposed to several potential risks both from internal and external sources. By addressing the risk in its 
nascent stages allows for long-term corporate success. Risks such as industry segment risks, technological changes, political 
risks, product distribution and supply can be anticipated and curbed. 

Your Company believes that the products should not be hazardous to the environment. Our products are made of virgin plastics 
which are universally approved by USFDA, EU Directive 2002/72/ EC, BIS IS: 12252 -1987 and other regulating bodies for Food, 
Beverage and Water storage. 

 

Some of the features that give an advantage to the Company over other local players in the market which may help the 
Company in reducing the loss of sales are:- 

• Non-toxic, Food-grade and Re-usable. 

• Unbreakable, Strong and Light-weight. 

• Manufacturing process integrates the finest quality certified raw materials, with state-of-the-art equipment and 
stringent quality control procedures, at every station on the line. 

• PearlPET products & raw material do not use Bisphenol A (BPA) or other harmful plasticizers/chemicals. 

• All of our products have good barrier properties that protect and preserve the food content. 

• Good strength, premium quality, Air tight. 

• 100% recyclable and environment friendly. 

 
DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT 

 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules,2016 and notified 
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and other relevant provisions of the Act and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India. 

 
BUSINESS OUTLOOK 

 
In the Consumer Products business, the near term growth remains uncertain. With the second wave of the Covid-19 virus 
sweeping across the country, interim periods of on-off lockdowns could occur at least until a significant proportion of the 
population in India has been vaccinated. The medium and long-term prospects of the business remain intact given the low 
penetration of these products in the country which provide a long runway for growth. The Consumer Products business is 
expected to grow by 15% to 20% in the medium term in a normal business environment with potentially higher growth rates in 
the near term. Verified Market Research points out that the non-biodegradable properties of plastic products have been 
reported to have a serious impact on the environment, which has slowed growth. Fluctuating raw material prices are also 
hindering growth. However, the plastics commodity market is expected to rise from $468.3 billion in 2020 to $596.1 billion by 
2025 at a CAGR of 6.0% as plastics continue replace metals in the marketplace. 

 
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
Pearl has in place an adequate system of internal control procedures for business processes, operations, financial reporting, 
fraud control and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, among others. They commensurate with the size of the 
company and the nature of the business and is in line with requirements of the regulations. 

 
During the year under review, no material weakness in the policy or procedures was observed. Your Company has put in place 
an independent internal audit system conducted by a professional to ensure adequacy of internal financial control system, 
adherence to Company policies and compliance. 



42 

 

 

ANNEXURE-‘II’ 
 

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 
 

I. The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy; 

 
The activism in energy conservation & its management comes from the increased demand of energy and its cost in 
the current scenario. The interest in energy efficiency is increasing at local consumption level, corporate level and the 
national level. It is important to address the environmental concerns resulting from the use of energy and also there 
are concerns about energy security. This issue has gained prominence in achieving sustainable development of the 
industry. 

 
Energy conservation means the change in the pattern of energy consumption and pursued efforts in reducing the 
increasing growth in energy consumption. 

 
Pearl always focus on reducing energy consumption as it opens up opportunities for innovation and improved 
efficiency, while reducing risks arising from price volatility and helping us manage natural resources. Effective 
measures have been taken to monitor consumption of energy during the process of manufacture. Continuous 
monitoring and awareness amongst employees have helped to avoid wastage of energy. 

 
The Company has continued taking following steps for conservation of energy during FY 2020-21: 

 
i. Measures are been taken to minimize harmonics generation in plant power circuit. 

ii. Continuously your Company undertakes necessary activities to educate and encourage employees to establish energy 
efficient practices. 

iii. Apart from above all possible efforts are being made to reduce power consumption on different machines. 

 
II. The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy; 

 
During the year Company has not taken any step for utilizing alternate source of Energy. 

 
III. The capital investment on energy conservation equipment’s; 

 
During the year, there has been no capital investment by the Company on energy conservation equipment. 

 
B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

 

I. The efforts made towards technology absorption; 

 
We have continued to develop through our creative edge, in a highly competitive industry through Cutting-edge technology for 
research and development of products in accordance with global Trends. We employ design thinking to connect with our 
consumers’ evolving their requirement. 

 
Your Company lays considerable emphasis on quality maintenance and product enhancement. The Company tried to develop 
more and more products in its R&D Center to attract more and more customers. 

 
We have already installed state of the art Finished Goods conveyor system for better efficiency, reducing manual labor and 
carton damages. 

 
All plants of the Company are state-of-the-art facilities with global approvals of ISO 22001, ISO 9001 and SEDEX. With rigorous 
hourly checks, the Company ensure that the Customer get the best product possible. 
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II. The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution; 

 
i. We successfully managed to reduce the manpower cost by adopting above step. 

 

ii. Through its rigorous R&D, your Company managed to manufacture 100% recyclable and environment friendly products 
which are Non-toxic, Food-grade and Re-usable. 

 

iii. Also developed new designs to attract more consumers. 
 

III. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year); 
 

The Company has not imported any technology during the last three years. 
 

IV. The expenditure incurred on Research and Development; 

 
To reduce our rejection levels and enhance customer satisfaction level, we have improved the quality of our products by making 
the significant development in moulds and other R&D. 

 

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO  
 

The Company has recorded export earnings of Rs. 120.64 Lakhs, and import payments of Rs. 1718.94 Lakhs details of which have 
been incorporated in the Notes to financial statements. 

 
 

ANNEXURE-‘III’ 
 

Form No. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2021 

 
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder for the purpose of compliance 

with Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015] 
 

To, 
The Members, 
Pearl Polymers Limited, 
A-97/2, Okhla Industrial Area, 
Phase-II, New Delhi-110020 

 

 
I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by “Pearl Polymers Limited” (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a 
manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my 
opinion thereon. 

 
Management’s Responsibility for Secretarial Compliances 

 
The Company’s Management is responsible for preparation and maintenance of Secretarial records and for devising proper 
system to ensure compliance with the provisions of applicable laws and regulations. 

 
Auditor’s Responsibility 

 
My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Secretarial records, Standards, Procedures followed by the Company with 
respect to Secretarial Compliances. 
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Opinion 

 
Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and soft copies of other 
records maintained by the Company and also the information electronically provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 
authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial A udit and subject to Management Representation Letter and 
Compliance Certificates confirming compliance with all laws applicable to the Company. I hereby report that in my opinion, the 
Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2021, generally complied with the 
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has in proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in 
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

 
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for 
the financial year ended on March 31, 2021 according to the provisions of: 

 
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder, as applicable; 

 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 

 
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

 
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct 

Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (not applicable since there is no action/ 
event in pursuance of said regulation) 

 
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 

(‘SEBI Act’):- 

 
a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

(“Listing Regulations”); 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 
c. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 
d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018; (not applicable since there is no action/ event in pursuance of said regulation) 
e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014; (not applicable 

since there is no action/ event in pursuance of said regulation) 
f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; (not 

applicable since there is no action/ event in pursuance of said regulation) 
g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 

regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (not applicable) 
h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (not applicable 

since there is no action/ event in pursuance of said regulation) and 
i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (not applicable since there is 

no action/ event in pursuance of said regulation) 

 
Other laws specifically applicable to the Company and/or followed by the Company: 

 
(i) The Legal Metrology Act, 2009 
(ii) Trade Mark Act, 1999 
(iii) Design Act, 2000 

 
I have also examined compliance with the Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India on 
Meetings of the Board of Directors and General Meeting. 

 
During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned herein. 
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I further report that 

 
1. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non- 

Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition, if any, of the Board of Directors 
that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

2. Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent in compliance to applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Secretarial Standards, and a 
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the 
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

3. The minutes of the Board Meetings and Committee Meetings have not identified any dissent by members of the 
Board/Committee of the Board, respectively hence I have no reason to believe that the decisions by the Board were 
not approved by all the directors present. 

4. The Company has proper Board processes except as aforesaid. 

 
I further report that based on information provided and also on the review of compliance certificates/reports taken on 
record by the Board of Directors of the Company, in my opinion, there are adequate systems and processes in the 
Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 
I further report that during the financial year under review, there are no specific events having any major bearing on the 
Company’s affairs in pursuance of the law, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above. 

 
 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 14-08-2021 Rashmi Sahni 
UDIN: A025681C000892470 Practicing Company Secretary 

Membership No: 25681 
Certificate Practice No. 10493 

 
Annexure A 

 

To, 

The Members 

Pearl Polymers Limited, 

A-97/2, Okhla Industrial Area, 

Phase-II, New Delhi-110020 

 
My report of even date is to be read along with this letter: 

 
Management’s Responsibility: 

 

a. The compliance of provisions of all laws, rules, regulations, standards applicable to Pearl Polymers Limited 
(hereinafter called ‘the Company’) is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My examination was 
limited to the verifications of records and procedures on test check basis for the purpose of issue of the Secretarial 
Audit Report. 

 
b. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to 

express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit. 
 

Auditor’s Responsibility: 
 

c. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on the test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide a 
reasonable basis for my opinion. 
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d. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company. 
 

e. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events etc. 

 
f. The Compliance of the  provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, and regulations, standards is the 

applicability of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 
 

Disclaimer: 
 

g. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 
 

 
Place: New Delhi 

Date: 14-08-2021 Rashmi Sahni 

UDIN: A025681C000892470 Practicing Company Secretary 
Membership No: 25681 

Certificate Practice No. 10493 

 
ANNEXURE-‘IV’ 

 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

 
To comply with Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [“SEBI (LODR)Regulations, 2015”] as amended from time to time, the report 
containing the details of Corporate Governance of Pearl Polymers Limited (“the Company”) is as follows: 

 

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE 
 

Company has over the years followed best practices of Corporate Governance. The Company believes that good Corporate 
Governance goes beyond compliance and disclosures. The driving forces of Corporate Governance at Pearl are transparency, 
fairness, integrity, equity and accountability. Doing the ‘right things’ in the ‘right manner’ reflects the spirit of Corporate 
Governance at Pearl. It is a reflection of us - our value system, work culture & thought process. 

 
The Company’s business objective and that of its management and employees is to manufacture and market the Company’s 
products in such a way as to create value that can be sustained over the long term for consumers, shareholders, employees, 
business partners and the national economy. The Company relentlessly strives to align its vision and business strategy with the 
welfare and best interest of all stakeholders. The Company is conscious of the fact that the success of a Corporation is a 
reflection of the professionalism, conduct and ethical values of its management and employees. In addition to compliance with 
regulatory requirements, the Company endeavors’ to ensure that highest standards of ethical and responsible conduct are met 
throughout the organization. 

 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
The primary role of the Board is to protect and enhance long-term shareholders’ value. It sets the overall strategy for the 
Company and supervises executive management. It also ensures that good corporate governance policies and practices are 
implemented in the Company. In the course of discharging its duties, the Board acts in good faith, with due diligence and care, 
and in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders. 
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Composition 

 
The Board of your Company consists of 6 (Six) Directors as on March 31, 2021, out of which 3 (three) are Executive Directors 
and other 3 (three) are Non-Executive Independent Directors (including one Woman Director). The Board has an Executive 
Chairperson. 

 
According to Regulation 17(1)(b) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 as well as relevant provisions under the Companies Act, 
2013, where the Chairperson is an Executive Director or a Promoter of the Company, at least one half of the Board of the 
Company should consist of Independent Directors and this provision is met at your Company . 

 
As per Regulation 26 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, none of the Directors on the Company's Board is a member of more 
than ten committees or Chairperson of more than five committees across all listed entities in which he/ she is a Director. All the 
directors have made necessary disclosure regarding Committees positions held by them in other listed entities. 

 
The composition of the Board as on March 31, 2021 along with their Chairmanship and Membership on the Board Committees 
is tabled below: 

 

Name/  Category    of  the 
Director 

Number of Directorship1 Number of Committee positions held² 

Membership Chairmanship 

Executive Director 

Mr. Chand Seth 
(Chairman & Managing 
Director) 

2 1 - 

Mr. Varun Seth 
(Whole Time Director) 

1 1 - 

Mr. Ramesh Mehra 
(Whole Time Director) 

4 2 - 

Non-Executive Independent Director 

Ms. Meera Johri 
(Independent Director) 

1 1 1 

Mr. Ravi Kumar Mehra3 

(Independent Director) 
1 1 1 

Mr. Ashish Harish Bhuva 
(Independent Director) 

3 1 - 

Mr. Anant Kanoi4 

(Additional Director- Non- 
Executive and Independent) 

2 2 - 

 

1. Directorship in private companies, foreign companies and companies registered under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 are 
excluded in the above table. 

2. For the purpose of  reckoning the limit,  membership/  chairpersonship of  Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship 

Committee have been considered. 

3. Mr. Ravi Kumar Mehra has resigned w.e.f 01st January, 2021. 

4. Mr. Anant Kanoi has joined the Company as Additional Director (Non- Executive and Independent) w.e.f 31st March, 2021. 

5. Mr. Chand Seth and Mr. Varun Seth are related to each other. 

6. None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than ten Committees or Chairperson of more than five Committees 
across all the Companies in which he/she is a Director. 

7. None of the Independent Directors on the Board are serving as an Independent Director in more than seven listed entities. 

8. The Companies which have been converted into Private Limited during the Financial Year are excluded in reckoning the number 
of directorships on the Board and chairmanship/membership of the Committees. 
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DIRECTORSHIPS IN OTHER LISTED ENTITIES 
 

Name of other listed entities where directors of the Company held directorships as on 31 March 2021 
 

Name of the Director Name of the Listed Entity Category 

Ramesh Mehra Pearl Apartments Limited Non-Executive Independent Director 

 
Except Mr. Ramesh Mehra, none of the Directors is having Directorships in any other listed entity. 

 
CORE SKILL/EXPERTISE/COMPETENCIES 

 

As stipulated under Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations, core skills/expertise/competencies, as required in the context of 
the business and sector for it to function effectively and those actually available with the Board have been identified by the 
Board of Directors. 

 
Chart/Matrix of such core skills/expertise/competencies of the Directors on the Board during the FY 2020-21 is given below: 

Skills/Expertise/ 
Competencies 

Mr. Chand 
Seth 

Mr. Varun 
Seth 

Mr. Ramesh 
Mehra 

Mr. Ravi 
Kumar Mehra 

Ms. Meera 
Johri 

Mr. Ashish 
Harish 
Bhuva 

Mr. Anant 
Kanoi 

Management & Strategy ✓ ✓ - ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 

Operations & Engineering ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ - ✓ ✓ 

Commercial Purchase and 
Supply Chain 

✓ ✓ ✓ - - ✓ ✓ 

Sales & Marketing ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ - 

Research & Development ✓ - - - - ✓ ✓ 

Regulatory Framework 
Knowledge 

✓ - - ✓ - ✓ - 

Knowledge of PET Industry ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ - ✓ - 

Identifying the growth areas 
for expanding the business 

✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 

Corporate Governance & Ethics ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 

Finance and Taxation ✓ - - ✓ ✓ ✓ - 

Risk Management ✓ - - ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 

Law ✓ - ✓ - - - - 

Human Resources & Industrial 
Relations 

✓ ✓ ✓ - - ✓ - 

Information Technology, 
systems and computers 

✓ ✓ - - - ✓ - 

 
BOARD MEETINGS 

 
During the FY 2020-21, the Board met five times viz. on July 31, 2020; August 31, 2020; September 21, 2020; November 11, 2020; 
and February 12, 2021. 

 
The gap between any two consecutive meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company was not more than 120 days. The 
leave of absence (“LOA”) was granted to the Directors as and when requested by them. The Board was made available with 
necessary information as required to be placed before the Board as per SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 for their discussion and 
consideration. 

 
Directors’ attendance at Board meetings and the Annual General Meeting of the Company held during the year is listed as 
follows: 
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Name of the 
Director 

Attendance at the Board Meetings held on Attendance at the 
last AGM held on 

31.07.2020 31.08.2020 21.09.2020 11.11.2020 12.02.2021 30.12.2020 

Mr. Chand Seth Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Mr. Varun Seth Yes Yes LOA Yes LOA Yes 

Mr. Ramesh 
Mehra 

Yes Yes Yes LOA LOA No 

Mr. Ashish Harish 
Bhuva 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No 

Ms. Meera Johri Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Mr. Ravi   Kumar 
Mehra 

Yes Yes Yes Yes NA Yes 

Mr. Anant Kanoi NA NA NA NA NA NA 

 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS (ID) 

 
Separate Meetings 

 
In line with the mandate given in the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, separate meeting of 
Independent Directors was held during the year, without the presence of Non Independent Directors and the Management of 
the Company. During the meeting, the Directors discussed, among other matters, the performance of Non Independent 
Directors and Board as a whole and assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information. 

 
Tenure of Independent Directors 

 
The tenure of the Independent Directors is fixed in accordance with the requirements laid down in the Companies Act, 2013 
and clarifications/circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, in this regard, from time to time. 

 
Further, in the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfills the conditions specified in SEBI Listing Regulations and 
are independent of the Management and the Company has received declaration in this regard from the Independent Directors. 

 
Resignation of Independent Director 

 
During the year, Mr. Ravi Kumar Mehra has resigned from the office of Independent Director w.e.f 01st January, 2021 due to his 
health reasons. He has also confirmed that there is no other material reason for his resignation as Independent Director from 
the Company other than those provided. 

 
BOARD FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME 

 
As required under Regulation 25(7) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Company has a familiarization programme for the 
independent directors. The details of the familiarization programme are available on the Company’s website at the link 
www.pearlpet.net. 

 

CODE OF CONDUCT 

 
The Company's Code of Conduct provides guidelines to be followed by all members of the Board of Directors and Senior 
Management Personnel. The Company has received confirmations from all members of the Board of Directors as well as Senior 
Management Personnel regarding compliance of the Code during the year. A declaration signed by Chairman and Managing 
Director to this effect is annexed to this report. 

http://www.pearlpet.net/
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BOARD COMMITTEES 

 
The Board delegates its powers and authorities from time to time to committees in order to ensure that operational efficiency 
and specific issues are being handled with relevant expertise. All decisions and recommendations of the Committees are placed 
before the Board for information or approval. 

 
The following four Board Committees have been established and each of them has its specific duties and authorities set out in 
its own terms of reference. 

 

A) Mandatory Committees B) Non Mandatory Committees 

i ) Audit Committee 

ii) Stakeholders' Relationship Committee 
iii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

i) Finance Committee 

 
A) MANDATORY COMMITTEE 

 
(i) Audit Committee 
The objective of the Audit Committee is to monitor and effectively supervise the Company's financial reporting process with a 
view to provide accurate, timely and proper disclosures. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are well defined and 
are in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Listing Regulations. The detailed terms of reference of audit 
committee are placed on the Company's website atwww.pearlpet.net. 

 

Composition 
 

The composition of the Audit Committee is as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 
 

The Company Secretary acts as a Secretary to the Committee. The members of Audit Committee comprises of majority of 
Independent Directors. All the Members of the Audit Committee have the required qualification and expertise for appointment 
on the Committee and possess requisite knowledge of accounting and financial management. 

 
The composition of the Audit Committee during the Financial Year and the attendance of the members in the meetings held 
during the Financial Year2020-21 are as follows: 

Name of the Member Designation Attendance at the Meetings held on 

31.07.2020 31.08.2020 21.09.2020 11.11.2020 12.02.2021 

Mr. Ravi Kumar Mehra1 Chairperson Yes Yes Yes Yes NA 

Ms. Meera Johri Member Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Mr. Varun Seth Member Yes Yes Yes Yes LOA 

Mr. Ashish Harish Bhuva Member Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Mr. Anant Kanoi2 Member NA NA NA NA NA 

 
1. Mr. Ravi Kumar Mehra ceased to be the Chairman w.e.f 01st January, 2021. 
2. Mr. Anant Kanoi appointed as member w.e.f 31st March, 2021. 

 
(ii) Stakeholders' Relationship Committee 

 
Pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has constituted a Stakeholders' 
Relationship Committee. This Committee was constituted to specifically look into the process of share transfers, grievances of 
security holders, if any, and also reviews the working of Company's Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. 

 

The terms of reference of the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee are well defined and are in accordance with the SEBI 
Listing Regulations as amended from time to time. The detailed terms of reference of Stakeholders' Relationship Committee are 
placed on the Company's website atwww.pearlpet.net. 

http://www.pearlpet.net/
http://www.pearlpet.net/
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Composition 
 

The composition of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee is as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015. 

 

The composition of the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee during the Financial Year and the attendance of the members in 
the meetings held during the Financial Year2020-21 are as follows: 

 

Name of the Director Designation Attendance at the Meetings held on 

31.07.2020 31.08.2020 11.11.2020 12.02.2021 

Ms. Meera Johri Chairperson Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Mr. Ravi Kumar Mehra Member Yes Yes Yes NA 

Mr. Chand Seth Member Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Mr. Ramesh Mehra Member Yes Yes LoA LOA 

Mr. Anant Kanoi Member NA NA NA NA 

 
1. Mr. Ravi Kumar Mehra ceased to be the member w.e.f 01st January, 2021. 
2. Mr. Anant Kanoi appointed as member w.e.f 31st March, 2021. 

 
Status of Investors’ complaints: 

 
The status of Investors’ complaints as on March 31, 2021 is as follows: 

Number of complaints as on April 01, 2020 NIL 

Number of complaints received during the year ended on March 31, 2021 NIL 

Number of complaints resolved/disposed of up to March 31, 2021 NIL 

Number of complaints pending as on March 31, 2021 NIL 

 
During the year, no complaint was received. Mr. Vineet Gupta, Company Secretary of the Company designated as the 
“Compliance Officer” of the Company in terms of Regulation 6 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

 
The Terms of Reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are well defined and are in line with the provisions of 
the SEBI Listing Regulations and the Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to time. The detailed terms of reference of 
committee are placed on the Company's website atwww.pearlpet.net. 

 

Composition 
The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

 

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee during the Financial Year and the attendance of the 
members in the meetings held during the Financial Year2020-21 are as follows: 

 

Sl No. Name of the Director Designation Attendance at the Meeting held on 

31.07.2020 31.08.2020 

1 Mr. Ravi Kumar Mehra1 Chairperson Yes Yes 

2 Ms. Meera Johri Member Yes Yes 

3 Mr. Ashish Harish Bhuva Member Yes Yes 

 
1. Mr. Ravi Kumar Mehra ceased to be the Chairperson w.e.f 01st January, 2021. 

http://www.pearlpet.net/
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Performance Evaluation Criteria for Independent Directors 
 

An indicative list of factors that may be evaluated include adherence to ethical standards and code of conduct, constructive 
participation inboard and committees’ meetings, implementing good corporate governance practices and review of integrity of  
financial information etc. 

 
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS 

 
PECUNIARY RELATIONSHIP/TRANSACTION WITH NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 

 
During the year under review, there was no pecuniary relationship/transaction with any non-executive directors of the 
Company except payment of sitting fees. 

 
CRITERIA OF MAKING PAYMENTS TO NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 

 
Non-executive directors of the Company play a crucial role in the independent functioning of the Board. 
They bring in an external perspective to decision-making and provide leadership and strategic guidance while maintaining 
objective judgment. 

 

The Remuneration Policy, inter alia, disclosing the criteria of making payments to directors and key managerial personnel is 
placed on the Company's website at www.pearlpet.net. 

 

The Non-Executive Directors of the Company were not paid any remuneration during the FY 2020-21. 

 
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 

 

Non-executive directors (Independent Directors) were paid sitting fees during the FY 2020-21 as earlier stated in this Report. 

 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 

 
During the year under review, the Company paid remuneration to Mr. Chand Seth, Chairman and Managing Director, Mr. Varun 
Seth, and Mr. Ramesh Mehra, Whole Time Directors of the Company. Each of the above Directors was entitled to Director’s 
remuneration which was determined by the Board with authorization granted by the shareholders at the Company’s AGM. The 
remuneration of Executive Directors and Senior Management of the Company was determined with reference to the 
Company’s performance and policy and in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, as well as remuneration 
benchmarks in the industry and the prevailing market conditions. 

 

Remuneration paid to Executive Directors for the financial year 2020-21 is as follows: 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Sl No. Name of the Director Salary and 
Allowances 

Perquisite Incentive/ Stock option 
etc. 

Total 

1 Mr. Chand Seth 23.70 12.00 - 35.70 

2 Mr. Varun Seth 26.40 2.34 - 28.74 

3 Mr. Ramesh Mehra 10.13 0.32 - 10.45 

 

Apart from above, the total contribution to Provident Fund of Mr.Chand Seth and Mr. Varun Seth was Rs.2,84,400/- and 
Rs.3,16,800/- respectively. There was no contribution to PF of Mr. Ramesh Mehra. The contribution to Superannuation Fund of 
Mr. Varun Seth was Rs.3,96,000/-.. Apart from these, Mr. Chand Seth and Mr. Varun Seth were provided Car with driver for the 
office use and value of car with driver as perquisite provided to Mr. Ramesh is included in the value of perquisite. The 
Remuneration drawn by the Directors was less than the remuneration approved. 

http://www.pearlpet.net/
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Sitting fee paid to Non-Executive & Independent Directors for the financial year 2020-21 is as follows: 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Sl No. Name of the Director Sitting Fee Total No of Shares/ 
convertible 
instrument held 

1 Mr. Ashish Harish Bhuva 0.20 0.20 0 

2 Ms. Meera Johri 0.20 0.20 0 

3 Mr. Ravi Kumar Mehra 0.20 0.20 0 

4 Mr. Anant Kanoi NA NA NA 

 

The sitting fee paid to Non-executive and Independent Directors was within the limits as prescribed under the Companies Act, 
2013. No remuneration other than the sitting fee for attending Board meetings was paid to the Non-Executive and Independent 
Directors. 

 
B) NON MANDATORY COMMITTEES 

 
In addition to the above referred Committees, the Board of Directors has constituted the Finance Committee of Directors. 

 
Finance Committee 

 
The Finance Committee of Directors has been constituted by the Board of Directors of the Company with necessary powers 
delegated to it with a view to conduct the affairs of the Company smoothly. 

 
The terms of reference are in accordance with the applicable provisions and are placed on the Company's website 
atwww.pearlpet.net. 

 

The committee comprised of three members namely Mr. Chand Seth as Chairperson and Mr. Varun Seth, Mr. Ramesh Mehra as 

Members. 

 
During the financial year 2020-21, the Committee met fortnightly to approve share transfers/ transmission and consider such 
other matters as may be delegated to the committee by the Board from time to time. 

 
PAYMENT TO AUDITORS 

 
During the year, the total fee for all the services paid by the Company to the Auditors was Rs. 41.52Lakhs, the breakup of which 
is given in the notes to Financial Statements. 

 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 
A detailed report on Management’s Discussion and Analysis forms part of this Annual Report. 

 
GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 

 
Annual General Meeting 

 
The details of last three AGM held and Special Resolution passed therein are as mentioned below: 

 
AGM No. Financial Year Address Date and Time Special Resolution Passed 

47th 2017-18  28.09.2018  

    NIL 
   11.00 A.M.  

48th 2018-19  27.09.2019 i. Re-appointment of Mr. Ravi Kumar 
  A-97/2, Okhla  Mehra as Independent Director for 

  Industrial Area, 11.00 A.M. further period of five (5) 

http://www.pearlpet.net/
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  Phase-II, New 
Delhi-110020 

 consecutive years. 
ii. Re-appointment of Ms. Meera 

Johri as Independent Director for 
further period of five (5) 
consecutive years. 

iii. Re-appointment of Mr. Ashish 
Harish Bhuva as Independent 
Director for further period of five 
(5) consecutive years. 

iv. Alteration of Articles of Association 
thereby adopting new set of AOA 
of the Company in accordance with 
the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 

49th 2019-20 Through  video 
conferencing 
(“VC”)/Other Audio 
Visual Means 
(OAVM) 

30.12.2020 

 
11.00 A.M. 

i. Re-appointment of Mr. Chand Seth 
as Chairman & Managing Director 
of the Company 

ii. Re-appointment of Mr. Ramesh 
Mehra as Whole Time Director of 
the Company 

iii. Alteration of Memorandum of 
Association of the Company 
thereby adopting new set of 
Memorandum of Association in 
accordance with the provisions of 
the companies act, 2013 and 
altering the object clause of 
Memorandum of Association by 
inserting and adding the new 
objects in the main objects of the 
Company and in the matters which 
are necessary for furtherance of 
the main objects 

 

Extra-Ordinary General Meeting 

 
No Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Shareholders was held during the financial year 2020-21. 

 
E-VOTING FACILITY 

 
The Company extends the facility for Remote E-voting to the shareholders to exercise their voting rights electronically on all 
resolutions passed or proposed to be passed in the AGMs. 

 
DETAILS OF POSTAL BALLOT 

 
I. Special Resolutions passed through postal ballot 

 
During the year, the Company approached the shareholders through postal ballot for seeking approval by way of Special 
Resolution for Sale of Company’s Business engaged in manufacturing, marketing, and sale of rigid plastic packaging solutions in 
PET and PP grade of polymers and other forms of resins for supply to other business entities for packaging their product (“B2B 
Business”) through Postal Ballot Notice dated September 21, 2020 by way of remote e-voting. The result of which was declared 
on 25th October, 2020. 

 
For conducting this Postal Ballot, Ms. Rashmi Sahni, Practicing Company Secretary (Certificate of Practice No: 10493) was 
appointed as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 
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II. Voting Pattern 
 

Total Valid Votes* Votes in Favor Votes Against 

No. of Votes No. of Votes % No. of Votes % 

12160291 11149088 91.68 1011203 8.32 

12160291 11149088 91.68 1011203 8.32 

 
* 3 non-individual voters holding 2139 equity shares and who did not submit Board Resolutionand/or Power of Attorney (POA) 
were treated as invalid. 

 
III. Procedure for Postal Ballot 

 
In compliance with the provisions of (i) section 108, 110 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
rule 20 and 22 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended; (ii) above mentioned circulars of 
MCA; (iii) Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) regulations, 2015, the Company provided 
its members, the facility to exercise their right to vote by electronic means through remote e-voting on resolution set forth in 
the Postal Ballot Notice and in this respect, the Company had engaged the services of Central Depository Services (India) 
Limited (CDSL) to provide the electronic voting (remote e-voting) facility to the members of the Company. 

 
In view of challenges being faced by the Companies in dispatch of Physical Postal Ballot Notice or Postal Ballot Form to the 
Members due to COVID-19 related lockdown and social distancing requirements and pursuant to the provisions of the MCA 
Circulars, the assent / dissent of the members in the Postal Ballot have taken place through e-voting and the physical Postal 
Ballot Notice (along with postal ballot forms) and pre-paid business envelope through post were not sent to the Members for 
this Postal Ballot. 

 
All the members whose name was appeared in the Register of Members / List of Beneficial Owners as on the Cut-off date i.e. 
September 18, 2020 were entitled to vote on the resolution set forth in the Postal Ballot Notice and voting rights were 
reckoned on the paid-up value of the shares registered in the name of the Members / Beneficial Owners as on the Cut-off date. 

 
The Notice was displayed on the website of the Company as well as on the Stock Exchanges and also published in the 
newspapers. 

 
The e-voting period was commenced on Thursday, September 24, 2020 at 09:00 AM IST and ended on Friday, October 23, 2020 
at 05:00 PM IST and the Scrutinizer submitted her report on the Voting Results to the Chairman of the Company. The said 
report along with statement containing the voting results is uploaded on the website of the Company as well as of the Stock 
Exchanges. 

 
IV. Special Resolution proposed to be conducted through Postal Ballot 

 

No Special Resolution is proposed to be conducted through Postal Ballot. 

 
DISCLOSURES 

 
Insider Trading 

 
In terms of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 (‘PIT Regulations’) as amended from time to time, the 
Company has a comprehensive Code of Conduct for regulating, monitoring and reporting of trading by Insiders (‘the Code’). The 
said Code lays down guidelines which provide for the procedure to be followed and disclosures whilst dealing with shares of the 
Company. The Company has also put in place the policy on leakage of unpublished price sensitive information laying down the 
procedure/inquiry in case of leak of unpublished price sensitive information or suspected leak of such information by the 
Associate Person of the Company and has access to such information. 
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Related Party Transactions 
 

During the year, there were no transactions with related parties which were materially significant or in conflict with the 
interests of the Company and that require an approval of the Company’s shareholders in terms of the Companies Act or SEBI 
Listing Regulations. All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee and the Board for review and 
approval. Prior omnibus approval of the Audit Committee was obtained for the transactions which are of a foreseen and 
repetitive nature. The transactions entered into pursuant to the omnibus approval so granted are placed before the Audit 
Committee and the Board of Directors for their review on a quarterly basis. The detailed policy on Related Party Transactions is 
available on the website of the Company at www.pearlpet.net. The details regarding Related Party Transactions are contained 
in the Notes to Financial Statements. 

 
COMPLIANCE WITH REGULATIONS 

 
The Company has complied with the requirements of the Stock Exchanges, SEBI and other statutory authorities on all matters 
relating to capital markets during the last three years. There has been no instance of penalties, strictures imposed on the 
Company by the exchanges or the board or other statutory authorities. 

 
The Company has complied with mandatory requirements of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and adopted some of the non- 
mandatory requirements. 

 
Non-Mandatory 

 
i. Modified opinion(s) in audit report 
The Company confirms that its financial statements are with unmodified audit opinion. 

 
ii. Reporting of Internal Auditor 
The Internal Auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee. 

 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
 

The Company has obtained a certificate from Ms. Rashmi Sahni, Practicing Company Secretary stating that none of the 
Directors on the board of the company has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Director of the 
Company by the Board/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any other statutory authority which forms the part of this Annual 
Report. 

 
VIGIL MECHANISM& WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

 
The Company has devised a Vigil Mechanism through Whistle Blower Policy for employees and other stakeholders to report 
their genuine concerns or grievances to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee for any instance of unethical behavior, actual 
or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's code of conduct. No person was denied access to the Audit Committee in this 
regard. A detail of Policy is available on Company’s website www.pearlpet.net. 

 

CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION 

 
As required by Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, Mr. Chand Seth, Chairman & Managing Director and Mr. 
Sanjeev Rikhi, Chief Financial Officer have given appropriate certifications to the Board of Directors certifying that the financial 
statement do not contain any materially untrue statement and these statements represent a true and fair view of the 
Company's affairs. The said certificate is annexed to this report. 

 
MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 

 
Financial Results 

 
The quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results are regularly submitted to the Stock Exchanges in accordance with the 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and are generally published in the below mentioned newspaper: 

http://www.pearlpet.net/
http://www.pearlpet.net/
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I. Financial Express (English Language) 

II. Hari Bhoomi (Hindi Language) 

 
The results are also posted on the Company's website www.pearlpet.net after its submission to the Stock Exchanges. These are 
available in a freely downloadable format. The Annual Report, Quarterly, Half-Yearly and Annual Financial Results, Shareholding 
Pattern, Intimation of the Board Meetings and other statutory filings with the Stock Exchanges is posted through the filing 
system of the BSE Listing Centre and NSE Electronic Application Processing System (NEAPS) portals. 

 
Apart from above, No official news releases were displayed and presentations were made to the institutional investors or to the 
analysts by the Company. 

 
GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION 

 
50thAnnual General Meeting 

 
Date and Time September 30, 2021 at 12:30 P.M. 

Venue Not Applicable as the company is conducting meeting through Video 
Conferencing/Other Audio-Visual means pursuant to MCA /SEBI circulars. 

Dividend payment date Not Applicable 

Book Closure September 24, 2021 to September 30, 2021 (Both days inclusive) 

 
Financial Calendar for the year 2021-22 (Tentative) 

 

Financial Year 2021-22 

Results for the Quarter ending Audited/Un-audited Tentative date of reporting 

June 30, 2021 Un-audited On or before August 15, 2021 

September 30, 2021 Un-audited On or before November 14, 2021 

December 31, 2021 Un-audited On or before February 14, 2022 

March 31, 2022 Audited On or before May 30, 2022 

 
The above dates are tentative and are subject to the relaxations already granted or to be granted by the regulatory 
authorities from time to time. 

 
LISTING OF SHARES 

 
The Equity Shares of the Company are at present listed on the following Stock Exchanges: 

 

Name of the Stock Exchange Stock Code/ Symbol 

BSE Limited (BSE) 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street,25th Floor, Mumbai - 400 001 

523260 

National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. 
Exchange Plaza, 5th floor, C-1, Block G,Bandra Kurla Complex,Bandra (E)Mumbai – 400 051 

PEARLPOLY 

 
The annual Listing Fee/ Custodial Fee for the financial year 2020-21 have duly been paid to the Stock Exchanges/ Depositories. 

http://www.pearlpet.net/
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STOCK MARKET DATA FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2020-21 

 
The monthly high- low of the Share price of the Company 

 

 

 
Monthly/Year 

NSE BSE 

Share Price Share Price 

High Low Close CNX Nifty 
Close 

High Low Close Sensex 
Close 

April 2020 13.25 10.20 12.40 9859.90 13.70 10.66 12.00 33717.62 

May 2020 12.95 09.80 10.70 9580.30 12.85 10.15 10.25 32424.10 

June 2020 18.25 09.45 15.30 10302.10 17.80 09.76 15.13 34915.80 

July 2020 23.20 14.35 20.30 11073.45 23.00 14.65 20.40 37606.89 

August 2020 21.15 17.40 17.40 11387.50 21.70 17.55 17.60 38628.29 

September 2020 21.55 15.60 17.80 11247.55 21.65 15.90 19.75 38067.93 

October 2020 18.25 15.40 16.00 11642.40 18.80 15.45 16.00 39614.07 

November 2020 17.45 15.25 16.65 12968.95 17.15 15.05 16.50 44149.72 

December 2020 21.60 15.25 20.55 13981.75 21.45 15.35 20.50 47751.33 

January 2021 21.55 16.90 18.00 13634.60 21.20 17.00 18.35 46285.77 

February 2021 18.90 14.75 15.30 14529.15 18.35 14.90 15.40 49099.99 

March 2021 16.25 13.95 14.05 14690.70 16.05 14.00 14.00 49509.15 

 
Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2021 

 
Shareholders Share Amount 

Shareholding of Nominal 
value 

Number of 
Shareholder 

% of total 
shareholders 

Number of 
shares 

Amount in 
(Rs.) 

% to total share 
capital 

01 to 5000 8887 91.027 11,86,712 1,18,67,120 7.049 

5001 to 10000 453 4.640 3,77,086 37,70,860 2.240 

10001 to 20000 202 2.069 3,04,127 30,41,270 1.807 

20001 to 30000 67 0.686 1,67,977 16,79,770 0.998 

30001 to 40000 26 0.266 95,018 9,50,180 0.564 

40001 to 50000 30 0.307 1,40,592 14,05,920 0.835 

50001 to 100000 40 0.410 2,93,204 29,32,040 1.742 

100001 and above 58 0.594 1,42,70,216 14,27,02,160 84.766 

Total 9763 100.000 1,68,34,932 16,83,49,320 100.000 

 
Shareholding Pattern of the Company as on March 31, 2021 

 
Sl No. Category No. of Shares Held % of shareholding 

1 Promoters 93,56,490 55.58 

2 Mutual Fund and UTI 5,410 0.03 

3 Banks, Financial Institutions, NBFC, Insurance Companies 
(Central/State Govt. Institutions/Non-government Institutions) 

4,01,382 2.38 

4 Bodies Corporate 6,47,709 3.85 

5 Indian Public 62,27,372 37.00 

6 NRIs/OCBs/FIIs 30,778 0.18 

7 Clearing Member 1,65,791 0.98 
 TOTAL 1,68,34,932 100.00 

 
DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES AND LIQUIDITY 

 
As on March 31, 2021, the status of Equity Shares in demat andphysical form is provided hereunder: 

 

Particulars No. of Shares % to share capital 

Shares in Demat Form held with NSDL 1,46,35,091 86.93 
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Shares in Demat Form held with CDSL 14,39,294 8.55 

Shares in Physical Form 7,60,547 4.52 

Total 1,68,34,932 100.00 

Depositories National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) 
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) 

ISIN INE844A01013 

 

COMMODITY PRICE RISK OR FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES 

 
Please refer notes to Financial Statements which forms the part of this Annual Report. 

 
SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM 

 
The share transfer requests, if any received in physical form are processed through Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA), 
within the prescribed time period from the date of receipt, subject to the completeness of documents in all aspects. A statement 
summarizing the transfer/transmission/Remat/ Demat/Sub-Division of securities of the Company is also placed at the quarterly 
board meeting. 

 
Pursuant to Regulation 40(9) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015, the Company obtains a half- yearly certificate on compliance 
with share transfer process from a Practicing Company Secretary and a copy of the same is filed with the Stock Exchanges. 

 
OUTSTANDING GDRS/ ADRS/ WARRANTS OR ANY CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS, CONVERSION DATE AND LIKELY IMPACT ON 
EQUITY 

 
The Company has not issued GDRs or ADRs or Warrants or any Convertible instruments. 

 
CREDIT RATING 

 
Credit Rating obtained by the Company from India Ratings & Research Private Limited during the year is as below: 

 

Instrument Type Rating/Outlook Rating Action 

Fund-based workingcapital limit IND B-/Stable/IND A4 Downgraded 

Non-fund-based workingcapital limit IND B-/Stable/IND A4 Downgraded 

 

 
COMPLAINTS UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 
2013 

 
During the year under review, no complaint received from any woman employee as per Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

 
ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE DURING THE YEAR WAS AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent Company Secretary 

Mas Services Limited 
T-34, 2nd Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, 
Phase-II, New Delhi-110020 

 

Phone No :011-26387281-83, 
Fax No : 011-26387384, 
E-mail: info@masserv.com 
Website: www.masserv.com 

Mr. Vineet Gupta 
A-97/2, Okhla Industrial Area, 
Phase-II, New Delhi-110020 

 

Phone No:011-47385300 
Fax No : 011-47480746 
E-mail: pearlsecretarial@pearlpet.net 
Website:www.pearlpet.net 

mailto:info@masserv.com
http://www.masserv.com/
mailto:pearlsecretarial@pearlpet.net
http://www.pearlpet.net/
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PLANT LOCATIONS 

Sl 
No. 

Location of 
Plant(s) 

Address 

1 Mahad B-3/2, M.I.D.C. Industrial Area, Mahad, Distt.-Raigad, Maharashtra-402309 

2 Jigani 13-A, Part-I, Jigani Industrial Area, Distt. Anekal, Bangalore, Karnataka-562106 

3 Baddi Khasra No 512-513, Village Sandholi, P.O. Baddi, Nalagarh, Himachal Pradesh-173205 

4 Pant Nagar Plot No 45, Sector-3, Village Kalyanpur, Distt U.S.,Nagar, IIE, Rudrapur, Pant Nagar, Uttaranchal- 
263153 

5 Guwahati Plot No 10,JagatiLogistic,Distt. Kamrup, Village Sindurghopa Guwahati, Assam – 781101 

The above plants except Mahad are transferred to Manjushree Technopack Limited w.e.f 12th April, 2021. 

 

DECLARATION ON COMPLIANCE OF THE COMPANY'S CODE OF CONDUCT 
 

Pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, I hereby confirm that the Company has 
obtained from all the Members of the Board and Senior Management Personnel, affirmation (s) that they have complied with 
the code of conduct in respect of financial year ended on March 31, 2021. 

 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

 

Place: New Delhi Chand Seth 
Date: 30.06.2021 Chairman & Managing Director 

DIN: 00002944 

 
CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 
 

To 
The Members 
Pearl Polymers Limited 

 

I have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Pearl Polymers Limited (‘the Company’) for the 

year ended on March 31, 2021, as stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of sub regulation (2) of Regulation 46 

and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”). 

 

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. My 

examination was limited to the review of procedures and implementation thereof, as adopted by the Company for ensuring 

compliance with conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial 

statements of the Company. 

 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, and the representations made 

by the Management, I certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the 

SEBI Listing Regulations for the year ended on March 31, 2021. 

 

I further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or 

effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

Rashmi Sahni 

Place: Delhi Practicing Company Secretary 

Date: 14.08.2021 Certificate Practice No. 10493 

UDIN: A025681C000892338 
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CERTIFICATE BY THE CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 

Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) Of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015 

 
The Board of Directors 

M/s. Pearl Polymers Limited 

A-97/2, Okhla Industrial Area, 

Phase – II, New Delhi – 110020 

 
Dear Sir(s)/Madam, 

 
1. We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2021 and certify 

that to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

 
a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that 

might be misleading; 

 
b) these statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing 

accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

 
2. We further certify that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the 

year were fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of Conduct. 

 
3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and we have evaluated 

the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and disclosed to the Auditors 
and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware 
and the steps taken or proposed to be taken to rectify these deficiencies. 

 
4. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit committee: 

 
a) significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year, if any; 

 

b) significant changes in accounting policies, if any, during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the 
financial statements; and 

 
c) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or 

an employee having a significant role in the company’s internal control system over financial reporting. 

 
 

 
Place: New Delhi Chand Seth Sanjeev Rikhi 

Date: 30.06.2021 Chairman & Managing Director Chief Financial Officer 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

 

To, 

The Members of 

Pearl Polymers Limited 

A-97/2, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase II, 

New Delhi- 110020 

 

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Pearl 

Polymers Limited having CIN: L25209DL1971PLC005535and having registered officeatA-97/2,Okhla Industrial Area, 

Phase II New Delhi-110020(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the Company for the 

purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of 

the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015. 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification 

Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the 

Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the 

Financial Year ending on 31stMarch, 2021 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 

Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other 

Statutory Authority. 

 

 
Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in 

Company 

1. CHAND SETH 00002944 18/03/1971 

2. VARUN SETH 00017552 01/07/2006 

3. RAMESH MEHRA 00003334 31/10/2000 

4. ASHISH BHUVA HARISH 06780082 01/09/2014 

5. MEERA JOHRI 06881924 26/05/2014 

6. ANANT KANOI 00150667 31/03/2021 

 
Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 

management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This 

certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with 

which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 
 
 

Place: New Delhi 

Date : 05.08.2021 

Rashmi Sahni 

Practicing Company Secretary 

Membership No: 25681 

Certificate Practice No. 10493 

UDIN: A025681C000740901 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
 

To 
THE MEMBERS OF 
M/s PEARL POLYMERS LTD. 
A-97/2, Industrial Area, Phase-II, 
Okhla, New Delhi-110020 

 

Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/S PEARL POLYMERS LTD. (“the Company”), which comprise the 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement 
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”). 

 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial 
statements gives the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and gives a true 
and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, the loss and total comprehensive loss, changes in 
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 
143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code 
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial 
statements. 

 
Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial 
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a 
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

 
 

Contingent liabilities and provisions (refer note 38 to the financial statements) 
Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 

The Company operates in various states within India, exposing 
it to a variety of different Central and State laws, regulations 
and interpretations thereof. In this complex regulatory 
environment, there is a risk of litigations and claims. 

 

Consequently, provisions and contingent liability disclosures 
may arise from direct and indirect tax proceedings, legal 
proceedings, including regulatory and other 
government/department proceedings, as well as investigations 
by authorities and commercial claims. 

 

At 31 March 2021, the Company’s contingent liabilities are 
disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements. 

 

Management applies significant judgement in estimating the 
likelihood of the future outcome in each case when considering 

Our audit procedures on contingent liabilities and 
provisions included the following: 

 

• Obtained the outstanding litigations list as 
compared to the previous year. Enquired and 
obtained explanations for movement in 
litigations during the year. 

• Inquired with management regarding the status 
of significant litigations and claims including 
obtaining legal teams views on the likely outcome 
of each litigation and claim and the magnitude of 
potential exposure. 

• Examined the Company’s legal expenses and read 
the minutes of Board meetings, to evaluate the 
completeness of list of the open litigations. 

• Read the latest correspondences between the 
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whether, and how much to provide or in determining the 
required disclosure for the potential exposure of each matter. 
This is due to the highly complex nature and magnitude of the 
legal matters involved along with the fact that resolution of tax 
and legal proceedings may span over multiple years, and may 
involve protracted negotiation or litigation. Management 
recognises a provision when it has a present obligation as a 
result of part events and it is probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 
settle obligation. A contingent liability is recognised if there is 
a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose 
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non- 
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly 
within the control of the entity. 

 

These estimates could change substantially over time as new 
facts emerge and as each legal case progresses. 

 
Given the inherent complexity and magnitude of potential 
exposures and the judgment necessary to estimate the amount 
of provisions required or to determine required disclosures, 
this is a key audit matter. 

Company and tax/legal authorities and reviewed 
legal opinions obtained by management where 
applicable, for significant matters and considered 
the same in evaluating the appropriateness of the 
Company’s provisions or disclosures on such 
matters. 

• With respect to tax matters, we involved tax 
specialists to evaluate the significant cases and 
the technical grounds for Management’s 
conclusions on provisions or disclosure of 
contingent liabilities. 

• For non-tax matters, we evaluated 
Management’s decisions and rationale for 
provisions established or disclosures made for 
contingent liabilities. 

 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises  
the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon. 

 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the  
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind-AS and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 
the audit. We also: 

 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on 
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management. 

 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether 
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms 
of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in 
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

 
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from 
our examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in 
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account. 
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d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind-AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read 
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in 
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an 
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over 
financial reporting. 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us: 

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial 
statements (Refer Note No.39 to the financial statements). 

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses. 

iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company. 

 

Place: New Delhi For Sehgal Mehta & Co. 

Date: 30th June, 2021 Chartered Accountants 
UDIN:- 21081482AAAACE9100 FRN-003330N 

 
 

(CA Naresh Khanna) 
Partner 
M.No. 081482 

 
 

Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report 
(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the 
Members of Pearl Polymers Limited of even date) 

 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 

 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s Pearl Polymers Limited (“the Company”) as of 
31st March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Auditors’ Responsibility 
 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing 
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting 
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether 
r due to fraud or error. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that 

1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; 

2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 

3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk 
that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 

Opinion 
 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting 
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. 

 
Place: New Delhi For Sehgal Mehta & Co. 
Date: 30th June, 2021 Chartered Accountants 
UDIN:- 21081482AAAACE9100 FRN-003330N 

 
 

(CA Naresh Khanna) 
Partner 
M.No. 081482 

 
Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report 

 

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the financial statements for 
the year ended 31 March 2021, we report that: 

 
i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed 

assets. 



68 

 

 

(b) The Company has a program of verification of fixed assets to cover all the items in a phased manner over a period of 
three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. 
Pursuant to the program, certain fixed assets were physically by the management during the year. According to the 
information explanations given to us no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us and based on the examination of 
the conveyance deeds provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and 
buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. In respect of immovable 
properties of land and building that have been taken on lease and disclosed as fixed assets in the financial statements, the 
lease agreements are in the name of the Company. 

 
ii) (a) As explained to us, the inventories have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals during the 

year. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the 
nature of its business. 

 

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the procedures of physical verification of 
inventories followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and nature of 
the business. 

 
(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has maintained proper 
records of inventories. As explained to us, there were no material discrepancies noticed on physical verification of the 
inventories having regard to the size of the operations of the company. 

 
iii) As explained to us, the company had not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to any companies, firms, Limited Liability 

Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act. 
 

iv) The company has not granted any loan, made any investments, provided any guarantee and security within the meaning of 
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits 

in contravention of Directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant 
provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under, where applicable. No order has been passed by the Company Law 
Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other tribunal. 

 

vi) As explained to us, The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the 
Act, for any of the activities such as engaged in the production of goods or providing services by the Company. 

 
vii) (a) According to the records of the company the company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities 

undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, investor education protection fund, employees’ state insurance, 
income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to 
it. 
According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of income tax, wealth 
tax, Service Tax, sales tax, custom duty, excise duty and Cess were in arrears, as at 31st March, 2021 for a period of more 
than six months from the date they became payable. 

 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the dues of sales tax, income tax, excise duty and Cess that 
have not been deposited with appropriate authorities on account of any dispute and the forum where the disputes are 
pending are given below:- 

 

Name of the 
Statute 

Nature of the Dues Amount 
(`In’Lakhs) 

Period to which 
the amount 
relates 

Forum where the dispute is 
pending 

The Central 
Excise Act, 
1944 

Producing and clearing dutiable and 
non-dutiable product under 
Notification No.4/97 

360.59 March 1997 to 
June 1997 

Commissioner of Central 
Excise, Raigad 

The Central 
Excise Act, 
1944 

Interest on differential duty paid in 
respect of supplementary invoices 

0.4 January 2001 to 
April 2003 

CESTAT 
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The Central 
Excise Act, 
1944 

Disallowance of Cenvat Credit on 
the supply of pet chips 

5.14 July 2004 to 
August 2004 

Commissioner of Customs 
& Central Excise (Appeals), 
Mumbai III 

Goods and 
Service Tax Act 

Vehicle seized case 2018-19 1.24 2018-2019 Commissioner  of    Goods 
and Service Tax, Bhopal 

  367.38   

 

viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the records of the companies examined by us, the Company 
has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to a financial institution and banks. 

 
ix) The Company has 'not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer Order is not applicable. 

 
x) Based upon our audit procedures performed and according to the information and explanations given to us, no material 

fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of 
our audit. 

 
xi) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the 

Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the 
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

 

xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi company. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

 
xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, 

transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of 
such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

 
xiv) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the 

Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures 
during the year. 

 
xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, 

the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. 
 

xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934. 
 

Place: New Delhi For Sehgal Mehta & Co. 
Date: 30th June, 2021 Chartered Accountants 
UDIN:- 21081482AAAACE9100 FRN-003330N 

 
 

(CA Naresh Khanna) 
Partner 
M.No. 081482 
















































